



Administrative Guide ECDC Fellowship EU-track Fellows Cohort 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	. 4
PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT EU DIRECTIVES AND INTERNAL PROCEDURES ECDC FELLOWSHIP MANUAL	. 4
PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT	. 5
THE TRAINING SITES FORUM HEAD SCIENTIFIC COORDINATORS SCIENTIFIC COORDINATOR TEAM FELLOWSHIP FACULTY BUREAU	. 5 . 5
CONTRACTS & INDUCTION	. 6
OFFER EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT	. 6 . 6 . 6 . 6 . 6 . 7
STARTING YOUR FELLOWSHIP	. 8
TRAVEL AND RELOCATION	. 8 . 8 . 8 . 8 . 9 . 9
INSURANCES & PENSIONS	10
SOCIAL SECURITY AND PENSION CONTRIBUTION TRAVEL INSURANCE	10
MODULES/MEETINGS/TRAVEL	
INTRODUCTION TRAVEL TERMS IN ECDC AND EPIET/EUPHEM TRAVEL REQUEST FORMS TRAVEL ARRANGEMENT PROCESS TRAVEL TO A MODULE TRAVEL TO A CONFERENCE ECDC "ORDERED" TRAVELS. INTERNATIONAL ASSIGNMENTS – COSTS & INSURANCES TRAVELLING FOR OTHER ECDC UNITS	11 11 12 12 12 12
LANGUAGE COURSES	13
REIMBURSMENTS	13
GENERAL NOTE	13
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	
SOCIAL MEDIA CODE OF CONDUCT	15
POSTING CONTENT	15

BEST PRACTICES	15	
APPENDIX	16	
A. GENERAL INFORMATION		
B. CONTACT DETAILS - FPO, COORDINATORS & ECDC UNITS/SECTIONS		
C. MEETING FORMS		
D. FINANCIAL IDENTIFICATION FILE (FID)		
E. LEGAL ENTITIES FILE (LEF) FOR INDIVIDUALS/PRIVATE COMPANIES		

INTRODUCTION

The ECDC Fellowship Programme is a two-year competency based training with two paths: the field epidemiology path (EPIET) and the public health microbiology path (EUPHEM). Both provide training and practical experience in intervention epidemiology at the national and/or regional centres for surveillance and control of communicable diseases and in laboratories with public health function at collaborative Training Sites in the European Union (EU) and European Economic Area (EEA) Member States. The fellowship trains fellows within core competencies required for the investigation and control of communicable disease threats in and beyond Europe. The programme is funded by the European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control (ECDC) and by institutes hosting or sending an EPIET and/or a EUPHEM fellow.

Purpose of this document

This guide aims to give a general overview of the administrative rules, routines and forms that you can encounter during your fellowship. It is in no way intended to be exhaustive nor complete. For more details on specific matters please contact the related unit in ECDC and/ or the Fellowship Faculty Bureau (FFB).

All forms in the Appendix section are subject to change. Please always use the latest version sent out directly from the responsible unit in ECDC.



This symbol is a reminder of items that need your action. Your compliance will facilitate work with the Fellowship Programme Office and our communications.

EU directives and internal procedures

All activities and administration in ECDC, hence for the fellowship programme, are governed by the EU directives, the mandate of the Centre and the internal procedures of ECDC.

ECDC Fellowship manual

For information on the scientific content of the ECDC Fellowship Programme paths (Introductory course, modules, supervision, reports, diploma, objectives etc.), please read the Fellowship manual.

PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT

The Training Sites Forum

The Training Sites Forum (TSF)) consists of one representative per path of each of the acknowledged training sites. They advise on how agreed objectives and principles for the programme are best translated into an operationally effective and efficient training programme, notably but not exhaustively, training objectives, curricular content including topics of the modules, graduation criteria, site visit process, timing of the programme cycle, and any other topic of relevance to the sites. On discipline-specific issues, the TSF may work in subgroups for epidemiology and microbiology.

Head Scientific Coordinators

Head Scientific Coordinators for EPIET and EUPHEM: Operationally responsible for implementing the agreed training activities and ensuring a high quality support to the fellows, supervisors, and training sites. They are each responsible for their respective discipline-specific curricula and learning objectives and jointly responsible for the overall programme objectives and the common programme curricula. The Head Scientific Coordinators are the main ECDC interface to TSF on matters related to the content and curricular aspects of the programme.

Scientific Coordinator team

Their role is to assist the Head Scientific Coordinators in implementing the programme by ensuring scientific quality of the products of the fellows and supporting them and their respective supervisors in the progress to achieve the foreseen programme and learning objectives.

Fellowship Faculty Bureau

The Fellowship Faculty Bureau (FFB) is located at the European Centre for Disease prevention and Control (ECDC) and is responsible for the faculty bureau and logistic support to the fellows and facilitators. FFB is the main ECDC interface to fellows and facilitators on all logistic issues related to the training modules and field missions. All operational tasks are carried out by the FFB in cooperation with different units within ECDC.

It is staffed by four Fellowship Faculty Coordination Specialists. The programme is governed by the rules and regulations of ECDC.

The FFB is your "one-stop-shop". For any matter you can contact them and they will respond or identify a respondent to your queries. For all travel arrangements and travel reimbursement claims, please contact ECDC's "mission and meetings (M&M)" or "reimbursements" department directly. Do not hesitate to copy the faculty bureau in on all communication you feel they should be informed of or if you need any support with your contacts within ECDC.

CONTRACTS & INDUCTION

Offer

After a successful candidate has been offered a position as a fellow by ECDC, he/she must accept/reject this offer in writing.

Employment contract

When an offer has been accepted, the fellow will be asked to contact their Training Site to prepare the employment contract. Fellows sign the employment contract directly with their Training Site.

Salary

During the two-year fellowship, the fellows receive a salary from the Training Site. The salary is decided per cohort and is stated in ECDC Administrative decision N°ECDC/AD/2016/21, or any revision thereof.

For cohort 2017 the net monthly salary is 2,200€/month or respectively the equivalence in the currency of the host country. A correction factor for the cost of living of the country of the Training Site will be applied to the salary. This correction factor, derived from the Official Journal of the European Union, may vary according to the date of the Framework Partnership Agreement between ECDC and the Training Site, and will apply for the entire duration of the fellowship and contribution to indirect costs.

Taxes

Salaries paid to the fellows are subject to taxation either in the country of origin of the fellow, or the country of employment. It is the responsibility of the fellow to provide independently for the declaration of the salary and payment of taxation on the salary she/he receives. However, to calculate the net monthly salary of the fellow, ECDC will reimburse only the taxes paid in the country of employment.

Annual leave/Exceptional leave/Public holidays

Fellows should keep the same hours of work, have the same public holidays and entitlement to annual leave as the other staff of their Training Site. Holidays cannot be taken during training activities where the fellow is obliged to participate, such as the Introductory Course, modules, and during ESCAIDE.

The Training Site supervisors and coordinators concerned oversee that the above rules are respected. Leave requests should respect the needs of the service of the Training Site. Leave requests must be approved by the Training Site supervisor.

Sickness

In case of sickness, fellows must notify the supervisor immediately and produce a medical certificate according to the rules of the Training Site. The Head Scientific Coordinators of EPIET/EUPHEM as well as the Fellowship Faculty Bureau (FFB) must also be informed.

Pregnancy and Adoption

In case of pregnancy and birth or adoption, fellows must notify the supervisor and respective Head Scientific Coordinator of EPIET or EUPHEM as soon as possible, and must produce a medical certificate or the appropriate documentation to the Training Site and FFB. In case of pregnancy and birth or adoption, fellows are entitled to maternity or paternity leave according to the rules of the employer and within the Framework Partnership Agreement (FPA) signed with ECDC. If needed, the training will be prolonged to ensure the minimum length of 23 months in order to be eligible for the diploma.

During the above mentioned leaves, the fellow is entitled to the social benefits of his/her employer.

Fellows must notify the Training Site supervisor and confirm their communicated return date to the Head Scientific Coordinator of EPIET or EUPHEM and FFB in accordance with the national law, but at least 4 weeks in advance. Fellows must be physically fit to perform the duties linked to the post

Attendance to training activities

The fellowship programme is based on learning through service. Fellows must take part in all activities organised under the auspice of the ECDC fellowship programme, respecting the timetables and programmes laid down by ECDC.

Training activities will be announced by the FFB by email to the fellows.

It is compulsory to fully attend the modules. Exceptions can be granted in case of maternity leave, acute sickness, severe family problems or involvement in acute outbreak investigations requiring the presence of the fellow. In these cases, prior approval from the coordinators organising the module and the Head of EPIET or Head of EUPHEM needs to be obtained and the FPO needs to be informed.

Diploma

Fellows who complete the full-time training period and comply with the graduation criteria receive a diploma.

Head Scientific Coordinators are responsible to check with frontline coordinators and supervisors if the fellow has achieved the requirements for completing the fellowship. Fellows who terminate the fellowship before 23 months or do not comply with the training objectives, do not receive a diploma.

If one or more training objectives are not met, the fellow receives a certificate of completion related to the activities conducted during the fellowship but not the diploma.

STARTING YOUR FELLOWSHIP

Travel and Relocation

Fellows will be eligible for the reimbursement of removal costs (maximum total of $\leq 10,000$ for fellows without family obligations or $\leq 12,000$ for fellows with family obligations, divided in two instalments, one at the beginning and one at the end of fellowship). ECDC will reimburse the Institute the actual costs for relocation so please contact your Training Site for more details regarding the relocation issue and a division of financial means.

Please be aware that there is a time limit for reimbursement of relocation costs, according to the Specific Grant Agreement (SGA) that is periodically signed between the Training Site and ECDC. You need to discuss these terms with your training sites prior to making arrangements.

Tip: Previous cohorts have indicated that moving and setting up a new household can be more expensive than anticipated. ECDC reimbursements can take time, and so can personal registration and setting up a new bank in a new country. Therefore, it's suggested to have a buffer of savings to use during the first few months.

Accommodation

Finding a place to live in a new country can take some time; please start looking as soon as possible.

Country-specific information

The EPIET Alumni Network's (EAN) website contains country-specific information compiled by current and previous fellows. Current cohorts are requested to add and update this information so that new fellows have a source of useful tips. <u>http://epietalumni.net/activities/countries-guide/</u> For questions, contact <u>eanboard@gmail.com.</u>

New contact information

To do:

All fellows are responsible for sending their new complete contact details (full address, e-mail address, telephone numbers), including the complete contact details of their supervisor(s) and administrative support, to the FFB to ensure that they receive all information. Complete contact details should be immediately sent to FFB upon arrival at the Training Site. If technical reasons do now allow for this, then the latest deadline that FPO should receive complete contact details is November 1. *Fellows are responsible for sending any subsequent changes in their contact details to FFB. Fellows must also keep their contact information up-to-date on their EVA account.*

Cohort representative

Each EPIET/EUPHEM cohort elects a fellow to act as their cohort representative. This usually takes place at the end of the introductory course. The role of the cohort representative is not entirely fixed; rather, it is shaped by whoever takes on the position. However, fixed responsibilities include: acting as a conduit between ECDC and the fellows on technical and organisational matters affecting the cohort; attending EPIET Training Site Forum meetings/EUPHEM Forum meetings and ensuring that colleagues update the country guides for their Training Site and collating these updated guides for uploading to the EAN website (in liaison with the EAN board) by the time the offer letters are sent for the next cohort.

ENDING YOUR FELLOWSHIP

Travel and Removal

Upon ending your fellowship, fellows will liaise directly with their institute concerning the regulations for how to proceed when buying flight tickets and contracting relocation services. Each institute will have its own individual procedure. The fellows will pay and arrange their own travel and removal of household goods according to the regulations of their institute. For more information see the section above on Travel and Relocation.

Bank account

Fellows are strongly advised to **keep their bank accounts open for at least 6 months after the fellowship**. This will enable ECDC to pay any eventual pending sums due.

New contact information



All fellows are responsible for sending their new complete contact details to the FPO to ensure that they receive all information and in order to stay in contact with the EPIET and EUPHEM networks. Fellows should send updated contact details by September 1 of their second year.

Fellows must also update their contact information on their EVA account.

INSURANCES & PENSIONS

Social security and pension contribution

Since you have an employment contract and receive a salary from your Training Site, you are part of the national social security and pension scheme. Please liaise with you Training Site directly in case of any doubt or question.

Travel Insurance

All sponsored meeting delegates travelling on behalf of ECDC are covered by a top-up insurance covering health, death, theft, damage or loss etc. complimentary to primary medical insurance held by meeting participants. In all other cases except emergency assistance, one must in the first instance claim from their primary insurance company and then claim from Cigna.

See separate document for a short summary of the insurance benefits as well as instructions in case of a travel incident while on meeting.

You can send queries to <u>travel.insurance@ecdc.europa.eu</u>.

Tip: For emergencies please contact 24H Helpdesk

Assistance Center: Tel: +32 3 253 69 16; <u>clientservice2@cigna.com</u> Contract Code: 2.004.760 (always mention when contacting the provider)

For international assignments on behalf of other organisations (including travel on behalf of your Training Site) these organisations need to arrange for your insurance coverage separately (see section below).

NB! Always check with the sending organisation **BEFORE** travelling that you have suitable insurance coverage.

MODULES/MEETINGS/TRAVEL

Introduction

All travel procedures and reimbursements are regulated in the two documents "Rules for Reimbursement of expenses for experts and participants attending ECDC meetings <u>outside or inside</u> Sweden".

Travel terms in ECDC and EPIET/EUPHEM

A "module/meeting" in ECDC is the term for travel made on behalf of ECDC. A travel for EPIET/EUPHEM specifically to support an investigation in the field outside the country of training is called an "International Assignment".

Travel Request forms

Before any travel on behalf of ECDC, fellows must always fill out and send the Travel Request (TR) form to the designated contact person in the Missions & Meetings (M&M) office.

Why does ECDC need a completed TR?

- To monitor your location
- For insurance purposes
- For possible travel arrangements, and later reimbursement claims, i.e. internal procedures.

NOTE: Own travel arrangements including private deviations may be arranged by fellows and the cost for an economy airfare will be reimbursed up to the price quotation provided by ECDC. Own travel arrangements must be communicated to the ECDC's M&M office in advance for approval **before** any ticket is purchased.

BEFORE travel:

1. Please read carefully the instructions when filling out the Travel Request. If something is missing, the TR will be returned to you for completion. **No travel should be arranged without submitting the TR first, including self-arranged travel.**

2. Submit the TR to the Missions & Meetings office for internal processing. For each fellowship event (Introductory course, modules, ESCAIDE) you will be informed beforehand by the Fellowship Faculty Coordination Specialist in charge, who is the main contact for that particular event.

Travel arrangement process

Once you have submitted your TR, standby for checking/approving itinerary suggestions from Missions & Meetings (M&M), and kindly respect any request/instruction they might give you. However, it is your own responsibility to inform M&M of any local transport situation that might affect the itinerary, i.e. no local transport, traffic situation, train ticket required to get to airport, etc.

AFTER travel:

1. FFB will provide you with a Reimbursement Application (RA) and the "Rules for Reimbursement of expenses for experts and participants attending ECDC meetings outside and inside Sweden" for each module. Fill out and sign the RA form.

2. Submission of the form is currently done through EVA but is subject to change for the Missions and Meetings office in ECDC.

3. Reimbursement applications together with the required documentation must be submitted within 90 days, counting from the last day of module/meeting.

Travel to a module

For each module, one of Fellowship Faculty Coordination Specialists will be the main responsible officer and take care of the organisation and distribution of information. Please note that you are expected to attend the modules from Monday 9.00 am to Friday 6.00 pm.

Nota Bene! If you cannot stay for the whole length of the module (arrive late or leave early), you need to obtain the approval of the coordinators <u>before</u> arranging your travel.

Travel to a conference

All fellows are supposed to attend ESCAIDE conferences during the fellowship. Organisation and finance will be handled by ECDC and FFB.

For all other conferences, please contact the Head Scientific Coordinator of EPIET or EUPHEM and the FFB to obtain permission <u>before submitting the abstract</u> and making any travel arrangements, especially if you would like ECDC to finance the attendance. **Please note that ECDC will only be able to finance attendance to other training conferences, such as TEPHINET.** Attendance of national or international conferences other than ESCAIDE and TEPHINET need to be funded by the Training Site.

ECDC "ordered" travels

An ECDC "ordered" travel is defined as following:

- The introductory course, all modules and ESCAIDE
- International assignments without external funding deemed necessary to achieve fellowship objectives
- Conferences approved by the Head of EPIET or Head of EUPHEM and paid for by ECDC

During these meetings you are covered by ECDC insurance.

International Assignments – Costs & Insurances

In cases of international assignments, the Head Scientific Coordinators of EPIET or EUPHEM make the final decision to send a fellow to such an assignment.

International assignments may be requested by the Training Site, ECDC, or a third party such as World Health Organisation (WHO).

The party that requests the assignment covers all costs (travel, accommodation, per diems and insurances).

In case of missions on behalf of the Training Site or third party, the Training Site or third party will cover all costs.

Insurance (assistance, repatriation, disease, etc) of the fellow, when on mission or international assignments related to tasks assigned by the employer is the responsibility of the employer. The employer shall provide the fellow with a copy of the terms and conditions of this cover.

Travelling for other ECDC units

Please note that when you are invited to participate in a project/meeting and similar by another unit or section within ECDC that is NOT organised by the FFB, you must remember to inform the related administrator/secretary in that unit that you are considered an external participant and paid by that particular unit and not the Training Section and the ECDC Fellowship. Fellows are responsible for ensuring they are provided with the correct forms.

LANGUAGE COURSES

One of the requirements to be eligible as a fellow is: To have a thorough knowledge of at least two official languages of the European Union.

In order to improve the language proficiency further and in accordance with the "EU directive on learning more languages" fellows are encouraged to take language classes.

Fellows will be eligible for the reimbursement of language courses costs (maximum total of \in 1,500 for first year). Language courses are restricted to courses that teach the language of the country of training. Only language courses taken during the first year of the fellowship are eligible for reimbursement

Tip: Please bear in mind that \in 1,500 is the maximum amount that you can use for your language courses during the whole fellowship. Make sure you divide this amount properly so that you can attend more than one course during your fellowship. Contact your Training Site to find out how the money has been allocated previously.

REIMBURSMENTS

General note

Please bear in mind that the processing and payment of reimbursements can only be done when the Reimbursement Application is complete and all requested supporting documentation is included.

To ensure as speedy a payment as possible, please make sure that the Reimbursement Application form is filled out completely signed in the correct place and has attached any necessary documentation before any documents are sent to ECDC for processing.

IMPORTANT!!! ALWAYS keep a copy (paper or scan) of any document (signed forms, receipts, etc.) sent to ECDC. This copy can be used if the originals become lost.

Modules/Meetings

For meeting reimbursements (Introductory course, modules, ESCAIDE, etc.) fellows need to fill out and sign the Reimbursement Application (RA) form and include all required supporting documents. The original RA and supporting documents must be mailed to the postal address for Meeting Reimbursement Applications. A separate payment will be made to the bank account approximately **90 days** after the COMPLETE and CORRECT documentation has reached ECDC.

To be eligible to receive the daily subsistence allowance (per diems), meeting participants must be resident 150 km or more from the meeting venue.

The per diem is only paid for the actual meeting days of the module. No per diem is paid for travel days.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Ownership of the results of the works/services developed by the fellow during his/her placement at the Training Site, including industrial and intellectual property rights, and of the reports and other documents relating to it shall be vested in the Training Site.

The Training Site grants the ECDC the right to make free use of these results (notably protocols, questionnaires and articles) for non-commercial and training purposes and provided they do not thereby breach their confidentiality obligations or existing industrial and intellectual property rights.

All communication on output, including early drafts, equally between fellow, supervisors and EPIET/EUPHEM coordinators will always be considered confidential.

SOCIAL MEDIA CODE OF CONDUCT

Social media provide powerful communication tools which are both engaging and have an impact on organizational and professional reputations. As a fellow and health care professional, your professional reputation is reaffirmed daily, and you are responsible for protecting that professional reputation.

Social media networking sites include, but are not limited to: Facebook, LinkedIn, MySpace, Twitter, YouTube, wikis, and blogs. Show respect for yourself, other fellows, colleagues, Training Sites, your fellowship programme, and ECDC by following these broad guidelines.

Posting content

- **Endorsement:** Representation of your personal opinions as being endorsed by EPIET/EUPHEM/ECDC or the Training Site is prohibited. You may not use these organizational names to promote opinions, products, causes, or political candidates. Be sure to include the statement: "This is my personal opinion and not necessarily that of XXX" when necessary.
- **Protect confidential and proprietary information:** Use good judgment about content and respect privacy laws. Do not to include confidential information about individuals or Training Sites.
- **Be professional:** Content should not be threatening, obscene, defamatory, a violation of intellectual property rights or privacy laws, or otherwise injurious or illegal.
- **Respect copyright and fair use:** When using or posting online material that includes direct or paraphrased quotes, thoughts, ideas, photos, or videos, always include citations. Provide a link to the original material if applicable.
- **Keep it legal:** Refrain from using information and conducting activities that may violate local or national laws and regulations.

Best practices

- **Think twice before posting:** Privacy does not exist in social media. Consider what could happen if a post becomes widely known and how that may reflect on both the poster and the subject. If you wouldn't say it at a conference or to a member of the media, consider whether you should post it online. If you are unsure about posting something or responding to a comment, ask your supervisor or frontline coordinator for input.
- **Strive for accuracy:** Get the facts straight before posting them on social media. Review content for grammatical and spelling errors.
- **Be respectful:** Understand that content contributed to a social media site could encourage comments or discussion of opposing ideas. Responses should be considered carefully in light of how they would reflect on the poster and/or organizations. Identify your views as your own.
- **Remember your audience:** Be aware that a presence in the social media world is or easily can be made available to the public at large. This includes current and prospective fellows, alumni, employers, colleagues, and peers. Consider this before publishing to ensure the post will not alienate, harm, or provoke any of these groups.
- **Photos:** Photographs posted on social media sites can easily be copied by visitors. Consider adding a watermark and/or posting images at lower dpi and smaller sizes to protect your intellectual property. Small images are sufficient for viewing on the Web but not suitable for printing. When posting photos in which people other than yourself are recognisable, you need to obtain their consent prior to publication.

APPENDIX

A. General information

The information given and forms displayed in the Appendix section are to be seen as examples and are subject to change. This guide is updated each year, but personnel might move and policies may change. Due to this, **it is each fellow's responsibility to be attentive to information they receive regarding changes and to always use the latest version of each form.**

B. Contact details - FPO, Coordinators & ECDC units/sections.

Fellowship Faculty Bureau (FFB)

Post address ECDC (PHC) Attn. Fellowship Faculty Bureau Granits väg 8, SE-171 65 Solna, Sweden **Visiting address** ECDC Tomtebodavägen 11 A Solna, Sweden

Fax: +46 8 586 01 001 (ECDC main fax)

NB! If you send something via registered mail please make sure that ECDC is the first line in the address. Writing "Attention of XXXX" first will delay the arrival to ECDC considerably.

Fellowship Faculty Coordination Specialists

Anna Bohlin Tel: +46 8 586 01 645 Anna.bohlin@ecdc.europa.eu Aline Eklöf Tel: +46 8 586 01 268 Aline.Eklof@ecdc.europa.eu

Coordinator team

Marion Muehlen (Head Scientific Coordinator of <u>EPIET</u>) ECDC (PHC) Tel: +46 8 586 01 231 Mobile: + 46 76 12 51 601 Email: <u>Marion.Muehlen@ecdc.europa.eu</u>

Samantha Bracebridge (Director UK-FETP) Public Health England (PHE-Colindale) 61 Colindale Avenue London NW9 5EQ, UK Tel: +44 20 8327 6384 Mobile: +44 7793 308120 Email: Sam.bracebridge@hpa.org.uk <u>Heidi Jung</u> Tel: +46 8 586 01 182 <u>Heidi.jung@ecdc.europa.eu</u> <u>Kristina Mittag-Leffler</u> Tel: +46 8 586 01 026 <u>Kristina.mittag-leffler@ecdc.europa.eu</u>

Aftab Jasir (Head Scientific Coordinator EUPHEM) ECDC (PHC) Tel: +46 8 586 01 356 Mobile: + 46 76 12 51 593 Email: <u>Aftab.jasir@ecdc.europa.eu</u>

Katharina Alpers (Director PAE) Robert Koch Institut, Abt. 3 Seestr. 10 DE-13353 Berlin, Germany Tel: +49 30 18754 3690 Fax: +49 30 18754 3533 Mobile: +49 160 7035 498 Email: <u>Alpersk@rki.de</u> Alicia Barrasa Blanco (100%) Instituto de Salud Carlos III, Centro Nacional de Epidemiologia c/Sinesio Delgado 6 ES-28029 Madrid, Spain Tel: +34 91 822 26 02 Mobile: +34 696 407 147 Email: Alicia@isciii.es

<u>Chris Williams (50%)</u> Public Health Wales - Health Protection (PHW) CF10 3NW Cardiff, Wales Tel: +44 2920 402 549 Email: <u>christopher.Williams25@wales.nhs.uk</u>

<u>Kostas Danis (100%)</u> Institut De Veille Sanitaire (INVS) FR-94415 Saint-Maurice Cedex, France Tel: + 33 1 55 12 53 34 Mobile: + 33 664 684 343 Email: <u>C.danis@invs.sante.fr</u>

Loredana Ingrosso (50%) Istituto Superiore di Sanità (ISS) Viale Regina Elena, 299 IT-00161 Rome, Italy Tel: +39 06 4990 3855 Mobile: +39 339 412 0654 Email: loredana.ingrosso@iss.it

<u>Silvia Herrera Leon (50%)</u> Instituto de Salud Carlos III (ISCIII) Ctra. Majadahonda-Pozuelo km2, Majadahonda, Madrid Tel: +34 91 822 37 00 Email: <u>Sherrera@isciii.es</u>

Missions & Meetings (M&M) office

Travel Arrangements Email: <u>Meetings@ecdc.europa.eu</u>

Reimbursement Applications

Email: <u>Reimbursements@ecdc.europa.eu</u> Fax: +46 8 30 57 46

Travel Insurance

Email: travel.insurance@ecdc.europa.eu

Daniela Schmid (Head of AT-FETP)

Österreichische Agentur für Gesundheit und Ernährungssicherheit GmbH (AGES) Institut für medizinische Mikrobiologie und Hygiene Wien, Währingerstraße 25a AT-1096 Vienna, Austria Tel: + 43 50 555 37 304 Fax: + 43 50 555 37 109 Mobile:+ 43 664 839 80 66 Email: Daniela.schmid@ages.at

<u>Ioannis Karagiannis (UK-FETP)</u> Public Health England (PHE-Colindale) 61 Colindale Avenue London NW9 5EQ, UK Tel: +44 (0)20 8327 7599 Mobile: +44 (0)779 539 1022 Email: Ioannis.Karagiannis@phe.gov.uk

<u>Christian Winter (50% ECDC 50% PAE)</u> Robert Koch Institut (RKI), Abt. 3 Seestr. 10 DE-13353 Berlin, Germany Email: <u>WinterC@rki.de</u>

Luise Coole (50%) Field Epidemiology Service National Infections Service Public Health England, Blenheim House, West One Duncombe Street Leeds, West Yorkshire LS1 4PL Tel : + 44 113 855 7348 or 113 386 0300 Mobile : +44 7881 508 545 Email : Louise.Coole@phe.gov.uk

C. Meeting forms

Examples of the Travel Request (TR) and Reimbursement Application (RA)

TRAVEL REQUEST/REG		Reindoursement Application Form Devides for orderin 201 Assess DBB
Reality state: ADDIVISION IN AD	and a first frank brank brank the first frank	Reverse in Assessed May and and in the particular in the particula
		T Rear and Demans of mining participant T-and attenue
and the state	1476-	
WHEN THE PROPERTY.	14	The second state of the se
Standard Internation		F - min 2007 American of additional American
to should be	faulter the	Tariante bits and a a latitude.
440 C	- Annaly	The industry and all the transformed to the following that downer
		E
	anti de contentad	Bener of Russ Besself
I' Bernett entrestation Big Bill and		We way 10 House the set of the local set of the set of
I Automatic hade in success to each profile.	and the second	E - Mail
I faithful a target a faithful state	Berlinsson for have been been the thread water	Engineering and by 1998 2 line along applicable and the line of
the same of the last of the same of	Contraction and an open in an orbit facility	Eligible Transmer for Melabarranet & Baie Secolitorian P
Marine Winces 208, Name and T. Salar or	risking to the state production in the second	Report Fact
differently and an only of the second different second di	300-1	Page 1
industry servers.		
the state of the second s		50 mm
Talass der Asile husder stilliges Rotuer ogs		£ 0 m.
where .	Test.	REPORTED AND APPLICATIONS AND DOE TO DATE AFTER THE LAST BAT OF THE POLITICS.
Rolfian	4/44	HALM FOR FRONT THE OWN FOR FORTH COMPLETED AND CODED.
ter a season as season bettern		A support month for the set board and the stight support date to provide the the state of the particular
wheel (Ruith - Brith)	Mare Martin Antonio	Conditions that they also all defined information of the Hard State
And a state of the	laster and	(book) with the advances of the owner of the test with a sector of the sector of the sector of the
Parameter and a second	to age of the state of the stat	an adveration in an early Manada and an all and
Notice Containing		The second state in the second is to prove the strength and the second state in the second state is a second state in the
		The statement in a second second
and the second se	1 at	
		THE DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTY OF
14	540.4	Annual Annual 20 Annual Annual
		and the second sec
China Indone Triant alte bei songenish songe Lantatio bit sagarithta Barra orașitete	and a state of the	Contract Con
	-	Rate
Eductation distants		1
the second s		Pressent for
And and the other sectors of a first sectors and the sector of the secto		station attacks
11-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1		Finduces prove for induces research darphic stiller and responsible. Recomparise the first space of devices the distance of first stiller and the distance of the devices o

D. Financial Identification File (FID)

http://ec.europa.eu/budget/library/contracts grants/info contracts/financial id/fich sign ba gb ______en.pdf

E. Legal Entities File (LEF) for Individuals/Private companies

NB! The form must be signed and dated at the bottom.

Individuals:

http://ec.europa.eu/budget/library/contracts grants/info contracts/legal entities/legEnt indiv en.pdf

Private companies:

http://ec.europa.eu/budget/library/contracts grants/info contracts/legal entities/legEnt privCo mp en.pdf

***** ****	**** * * ***
LEGAL ENTITIES	PRIVACY STATEMENT to be surger adjudged between an object of the surger adjudged between an object of the surger adjudged between an object of the surger adjudged between adjudge
PRIVACY STATEMENT Model autodes subudes three vector barriers and individual and individual and individual	PRIVATE COMPANY
INDIVIDUAL	COMPANY
NAME	TYPE
FIRST NAME	NGO YES NO (Nor-Governmental Organisation)
(NAME 2)	
(NAME 3)	NAME(8)
OFFICIAL	
ADDRESS	
(OFFICIAL Address - Your PERMANENT address; generally the one which is registered on your identity card) POSTCODE P.O. BOX	ABBREVIATION
TOWN/CITY	ADDRESS OF
COUNTRY	HEAD OFFICE / FISCAL
	ADDRESS
VAT NR **	POSTCODE P.O. BOX
	TOWNICITY
PASSPORT NUMBER	COUNTRY
DATE OF BIRTH	VAT (1)
COUNTRY OF BIRTH	PLACE OF REGISTRATION
PHONE FAX	DATE OF REGISTRATION
E-MAIL	
THIS "LEGAL ENTITY" SHEET MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED, AND SUBMITTED TOGETHER WITH A LEGIBLE PHOTOCOPY OF THE IDENTITY CARD OR PASSPORT	PHONE
" IF THIS FIELD IS FILLED IN, PLEASE ATTACH AN OFFICIAL "VAT" DOCUMENT.	E-MAIL
DATE AND BIGHATURE	THIS "LEGAL ENTITY" FORM SHOULD BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED TOGETHER WITH: 1. A COPY OF THE VAT REGISTRATION DOCUMENT IF APPLICABLE AND IF THE VAT NUMBER DOES NOT APPEAR ON THE OFFICIAL DOCUMENT REFERENCE TO AT 2 BELOW. 2. A COPY OF SOME OFFICIAL DOCUMENT (OFFICIAL GAZETTE, COMPANY REGISTER ETC.) SHOWNIG THE NAME OF THE LEGAL ENTITY, THE ADDRESS OF THE HEAD OFFICE AND THE REGISTRATION NUMBER GIVEN TO IT BY THE NATIONAL AUTHORITIES.

DATE AND SIGNATURE OF AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE